

Reading Booklet

Travelers should always check with their nation's State Department for current advisories on local conditions before traveling abroad.

Booklet Design: Maia Kennedy

© and ® Recorded Program 2019 Simon & Schuster, Inc.

© Reading Booklet 2019 Simon & Schuster, Inc. Pimsleur® is an imprint of Simon & Schuster Audio, a division of Simon & Schuster, Inc. Mfg. in USA.

All rights reserved.

#### **ACKNOWLEDGMENTS**

#### **VOICES**

English-Speaking Instructor	Ray Brown
Russian-Speaking Instructor	Vladimir Federov
Female Russian Speaker	. Elena Bourtsev
Male Russian Speaker	. Dmitry Kukunov

#### **COURSE WRITERS**

Dilya Shorfova ◆ Masako D'Auria

#### **EDITORS**

Christopher J. Gainty ◆ Beverly D. Heinle

#### REVIEWER

Alesya Nekrasova

#### PRODUCER & DIRECTOR

Sarah H. McInnis

#### RECORDING ENGINEER

Peter S. Turpin

Simon & Schuster Studios, Concord, MA

#### **Table of Contents**

Introduction	1
Cyrillic Alphabet	4
Урок Один	6
Урок Два	7
Урок Три	9
Урок Четыре	11
Урок Пять	13
Урок Шесть	15
Урок Семь	17
Урок Восемь	19
Урок Девять	21
Урок Десять	23
Урок Одиннадцать	25
Урок Двенадцать	27
Урок Тринадцать	29
Урок Четырнадцать	31
Урок Пятнадцать	32
Урок Шестнадцать	34
Урок Семнадцать	36
Урок Восемнадцать	38
Урок Девятнадцать	40
Урок Двадцать	42
Translations	44

#### **Russian Superstitions**

In Russian 5 you will learn about some common Russian superstitions. Russian people are often superstitious, believing in both good and bad omens. There are many common superstitions, some seemingly unreasonable and even absurd. Nevertheless, Russians take them seriously.

One of such superstitions is that it is bad luck to return home once you have left the house. If you suddenly realize you forgot something and have to go back home to get it, it's considered bad luck to do so. If you absolutely have to, it is said that looking at your reflection and smiling or sticking out your tongue will scare off the bad luck.

Some superstitions are more logical and helpful. One of them is to sit down right before a trip, called "sitting for the road." Just when your luggage is all packed and you're ready to step outside, you should sit down and stay silent for a moment. It's a good way to slow down to gather your thoughts and make sure you've got everything necessary for your trip.

Another Russian superstition is about congratulating someone or celebrating someone's birthday. It's considered to be a bad omen if someone wishes you a happy birthday a day early. Russians also

avoid throwing any birthday celebrations before the actual date. The same goes for celebrating a baby who is not born yet. There is no such thing as a baby shower in Russia.

People also say that it's a good omen when it rains on your wedding day. If it rains, it is said that the newlyweds will have a happy life together. The same is said about broken glass. It's become a tradition for the bride and groom to break their champagne glasses after the first toast.

It seems that there's a superstition for every situation in Russia. Some of them are more common and are well known, others are specific to certain areas or families. Being familiar with some of them might save you from an awkward or confusing situation and will certainly demonstrate your knowledge of Russian culture.

#### **Cyrillic Alphabet**

As you learned in previous levels, the Cyrillic alphabet is composed of 33 letters. They're listed in order on page 4, along with a guide to the sounds represented by each letter. Many Russian letters (mostly vowels, but also some consonants) have

more than one sound, depending on the amount of stress given to the letter or its position in the word. The examples listed in the "Guide to Pronunciation" are approximate English equivalents—as in any language, the pronunciations will vary slightly in different letter combinations.

You should also remember that these pronunciations should only be taken as guidelines. It's best to learn and practice the pronunciations that you hear the speakers use, trying to make yours sound as close as possible to theirs, rather than worrying too much about the English equivalents.

#### **Reading Lessons**

The twenty Reading Lessons in Russian Level 5 tell a story, «Обратно к истине» ("Back to Roots") which will provide practice in reading and expand your vocabulary. You will recognize some of the grammatical points and structures, as well as many idiomatic expressions that you have learned in this and previous Levels. English translation is provided at the end of the story. Instructions on how to do the Reading Lessons are contained on the audio.

#### **Cyrillic Alphabet**

Cyrillic Letter (capital / small)	Guide to Pronunciation
Aa	<b>a</b> as in <i>father</i> when stressed; <b>u(h)</b> as in <i>mumps</i> when unstressed
Бб	<b>b</b> as in bet; <b>p</b> at the end of a word
Вв	<b>v</b> as in <i>vandal</i> ; <b>f</b> at the end of a word
Гг	<b>g</b> as in <i>gasoline</i> ; <b>k</b> at the end of a word; sometimes <b>v</b> when in "r-o" combination
Дд	<b>d</b> as in deep; <b>t</b> at the end of a word
Ee	<b>ye</b> as in <i>yesterday</i> when in the beginning of the word; <b>e</b> as in <i>ten</i> in all other cases
Ëë	<b>yo</b> as in <i>yoga</i> when in the beginning of the word; <b>gno</b> as in <i>gnocchi</i> in all other cases
жж	<b>zh</b> as in the middle of the word <i>treasure</i>
33	<b>z</b> as in zoo; sometimes <b>s</b> at the end of a word
Ии	<b>e</b> as in <i>eagle</i> (when stressed); <b>i</b> as in <i>big</i> when unstressed
Йй	<b>y</b> as in <i>y</i> es
Кк	<b>k</b> as in <i>Kafka</i>
Лл	l as in Lenin
Мм	<b>m</b> as in Moscow
Нн	<b>n</b> as in <i>next</i>
Oo	<ul> <li>as in more, but shorter (when stressed);</li> <li>as in ostrich (when unstressed);</li> <li>sometimes uh (when unstressed at the end of a word)</li> </ul>

Cyrillic Letter (capital / small)	Guide to Pronunciation
Пп	<b>p</b> as in Peter
Рр	rolled <b>r</b>
Сс	<b>s</b> as in so
Тт	<b>t</b> as in top
Уу	oo as in tool
Фф	<b>f</b> as in <i>find</i>
Xx	aspirated <b>h</b>
Цц	ts combination, as in pits
Чч	<b>ch</b> combination, as in <i>cheese</i>
Шш	<b>sh</b> as in shoe
Щщ	longer, softer <b>sh</b> sound
Ъъ	hard sign - indicates a slight pause between syllables
Ыы	fast <b>euh-ee</b> combination
Ьь	soft sign - makes the preceding letter "soft" (e.g. <b>p</b> sound in pew.)
Ээ	<b>eh</b> as in extra
Юю	yu as in youth when in the beginning of the word; fast ee-oo combination, like -eau- in beauty
Яя	<b>ya</b> as in <i>yawn</i> when in the beginning of the word; <b>i</b> as in <i>liability</i> when unstressed

#### Урок Один

- 1. Наконец-то наступило время каникул!
- 2. Вы л**ю**бите л**е**то?
- 3. Лето моё любимое время года.
- 4. Летом моя семья отправляется в отпуск.
- 5. Я родилась и сейчас живу в США, ...
- 6. а мо**и** род**и**тели родил**и**сь и в**ы**росли в Росс**и**и.
- 7. Он**и** пере**е**хали в Нью-Йорк в девян**о**стые г**о**ды, ...
- 8. во время распада Советского Союза.
- 9. У нас в Росс**и**и ост**а**лись р**о**дственники и бл**и**зкие друзь**я**.
- 10. Мы стар**а**емся навещ**а**ть их.
- 11. Я провел**а** не одн**о** л**е**то ...
- 12. в гост**я**х у мо**е**й б**а**бушки в дер**е**вне под Москв**о**й.
- 13. Этим летом мы очень хотим проведать ...
- 14. т**ё**тю **А**ню, м**а**мину сестр**у**.
- 15. Несколько лет назад она и её муж ...
- 16. смен**и**ли м**е**сто ж**и**тельства.
- 17. Теп**е**рь он**и** жив**у**т в Калинингр**а**де.
- 18. Я совс**е**м ничег**о** не зн**а**ла про **э**тот г**о**род.
- 19. И я был**а о**чень удивлен**а**, ...
- 20. когда нашла Калининград на карте.

#### Урок Два

- 1. Оказывается, эта область, как маленький островок, ...
- 2. находится отдельно от остальной ...
- 3. террит**о**рии Росс**и**йской Федер**а**ции.
- 4. **О**бласть сж**а**та м**е**жду П**о**льшей и Литв**о**й.
- 5. И омыв**а**ется Балт**и**йским м**о**рем.
- 6. Моя мама рассказывала, что Калининград ...
- 7. внешне отличается от Российских городов.
- 8. До Втор**о**й миров**о**й войн**ы** он явл**я**лся ч**а**стью Герм**а**нии.
- 9. Тётя **А**ня присыл**а**ла нам фотогр**а**фии из Калинингр**а**да.
- 10. Есть там соборы в готическом стиле ...
- 11. и ст**а**рые кр**е**пости, и н**а**бережные ...
- 12. с цветн**ы**ми д**о**миками и у**ю**тными каф**е**.
- 13. Калининградская **о**бласть в мо**ё**м воображ**е**нии ...
- 14. в**ы**глядит чуд**е**сно!
- 15. Мы вылетаем в Россию в конце этой недели.

- 16. У нас, к сожал**е**нию, не прям**о**й рейс, ...
- 17. а с перес**а**дкой в Варш**а**ве.
- 18. Сл**а**ва Б**о**гу, мы не д**о**лго б**у**дем ждать в аэропорт**у**.
- 19. Подарки и сувениры родным куплены.
- 20. Мы собрали чемоданы и готовы отправиться в путь!

#### Урок Три

- 1. Калининград встречает нас не **о**чень дружел**ю**бно.
- 2. Погода пасмурная, идёт дождь.
- 3. Тётя **А**ня объясн**и**ла, что лето у них об**ы**чно прохл**а**дное.
- 4. В и**ю**не ч**а**сто **о**блачно ...
- 5. и температ**у**ра **о**коло двадцат**и** гр**а**дусов по Ц**е**льсию.
- 6. **Э**то семьдесят градусов по Фаренгейту.
- 7. Здесь т**о**чно не тр**о**пики, под**у**мала я.
- 8. Но, несмотря на это, местные жители ...
- 9. любят полежать на пляже и искупаться в море.
- 10. Он**и** прив**ы**кли к так**о**му кл**и**мату.
- 11. Т**ё**тя **А**ня с р**а**достью сообщ**и**ла нам, ...
- 12. что е**ё** сос**е**дка раб**о**тает в муз**е**е Имману**и**ла К**а**нта.
- 13. И он**а** провед**ё**т нам незабыв**а**емый тур ...
- 14. по муз**е**ю и по г**о**роду.

- 15. Имману**и**л Кант был изв**е**стным нем**е**цким фил**о**софом.
- 16. Он род**и**лся в **э**том г**о**роде, тогд**а** это был К**ё**нигсберг.
- 17. Он написал очень много книг, ...
- 18. был тал**а**нтливым проф**е**ссором, ...
- 19. внёс большой вклад в образование.
- 20. Он прож**и**л всю жизнь здесь и похор**о**нен здесь же.

#### Урок Четыре

- 1. У мо**е**й т**ё**ти есть сын, мой ров**е**сник.
- 2. Мы виделись в последний раз, ...
- 3. когд**а** б**ы**ли совс**е**м м**а**ленькими.
- 4. Вад**и**м **у**чится в техн**и**ческом университ**е**те Калинингр**а**да.
- 5. Он обещал мне показать их университет, ...
- 6. и познакомить меня с его друзьями.
- 7. Мне **о**чень любоп**ы**тно как**а**я он**а**, ...
- 8. студенческая жизнь в Росс**и**и.
- 9. Как при**я**тно навест**и**ть родн**ы**х!
- 10. Вр**е**мя **у**жина, все сует**я**тся.
- 11. Мо**я** м**а**ма и т**ё**тя **А**ня накрыв**а**ют на стол.
- 12. В в**о**здухе аром**а**т запеч**ё**нной с **я**блоками к**у**рицы.
- Мужчины уже сидят за столом с вилками в руках.
- 14. Он**и** всегд**а** гот**о**вы вк**у**сно по**е**сть.
- 15. Наши мамы отлично готовят.

- 16. Мне бы тоже надо научиться.
- 17. П**о**сле **у**жина мы пьём чай с конф**е**тами, разгов**а**риваем.
- 18. Родители вспоминают детство, ...
- 19. **о**бщих знак**о**мых, кто и где сейч**а**с. Он**и** вздых**а**ют, ...
- 20. пот**о**м сме**ю**тся, а я наблюд**а**ю за н**и**ми с ул**ы**бкой.

#### Урок Пять

- 1. На этих выходных по прогнозу ...
- 2. должна быть отличная погода.
- 3. Дядя Володя предложил съездить ...
- 4. в Зеленоградск на пару дней.
- 5. Это т**и**хий прим**о**рский город**о**к ...
- 6. **о**коло ч**а**са езд**ы** от Калинингр**а**да.
- 7. Город курорт, идеальное место для спокойного, ...
- 8. сем**е**йного **о**тдыха. Б**ы**ло решен**о** ...
- арендовать небольшой дом недалеко от берега.
- А по дороге в Зеленоградск, мы запланировали ...
- заехать в национальный парк
   Куршская коса.
- 12. Он включён в список памятников природы ЮНЕСКО.
- 13. Я чит**а**ла, что К**у**ршскую кос**у** назыв**а**ют «пт**и**чий мост».

- 14. По нем**у** прох**о**дит др**е**вний путь птиц ...
- 15. мигрирующих с севера на юг.
- 16. В парке можно увидеть и песчаные дюны ...
- 17. и хв**о**йные лес**а**.
- 18. Это один из самых маленьких, ...
- 19. и одноврем**е**нно од**и**н из с**а**мых посещ**а**емых ...
- 20. национальных парков России.

#### Урок Шесть

- 1. Кто-то нам сказ**а**л, что недалек**о** от п**а**рка ...
- 2. есть прекрасный, уединённый пляж.
- 3. День сегодня тёплый, солнечный, ни облачка в небе!
- 4. Следующая остановка пляж на берегу Балтийского моря.
- 5. Мы не ср**а**зу нашл**и э**то м**е**сто, ...
- 6. пляж б**у**дто бы пр**я**тался от посет**и**телей.
- 7. Мы д**о**лго плут**а**ли по **у**зкой прос**ё**лочной дор**о**ге ...
- 8. и након**е**ц в**ы**ехали к б**е**регу.
- Вот мы с радостью бежим с Вадимом к воде ...
- 10. и с голов**о**й окун**а**емся в хол**о**дную в**о**ду.
- Мы довольные выползаем из воды и видим ...
- 12. наших род**и**телей с забавным, трев**о**жным и ...
- 13. как**и**м-то нел**о**вким выраж**е**нием лиц**а**.

- 14. Он**и** зазыв**а**ют нас ж**е**стами к себ**е**.
- Мы переглянулись с Вадимом, и поспешили ...
- 16. к ним навстр**е**чу. И т**о**лько сейч**а**с мы п**о**няли ...
- 17. прич**и**ну их странного поведения.
- 18. Все отдых**а**ющие на пл**я**же б**ы**ли соверш**е**нно г**о**лые!
- 19. **Э**то оказ**а**лся нуд**и**стский пляж!
- 20. По дор**о**ге на друг**о**й пляж мы все др**у**жно сме**я**лись.

#### Урок Семь

- 1. Сегодня день рождения у моего папы.
- 2. Мы подгот**о**вили ем**у** сюрпр**и**з!
- 3. Он очень любит рыбачить, ...
- 4. и здесь, в Балтийском море, ловят треску.
- 5. Оказалось, тур морской рыбалки распространённое удовольствие.
- Мы заказали большой катер с двумя каютами и ...
- 7. кухонным оборудованием.
- 8. Экипаж выдал нам снасти и показал нам ...
- 9. как правильно ловить эту большую, хищную рыбу.
- 10. **Э**то б**ы**ло не пр**о**сто!
- 11. Мы с азартом погрузились в процесс ...
- 12. и ск**о**ро у нас был п**е**рвый ул**о**в!
- 13. Папе попалась трёхкилограммовая треска.
- 14. А пот**о**м пойм**а**л р**ы**бу и д**я**дя Вол**о**дя.
- 15. Капит**а**н у нас был отл**и**чный, знал пр**а**вильные мест**а**, ...

- 16. чт**о**бы мы т**о**чно не с пуст**ы**ми рук**а**ми у**е**хали.
- 17. Там же на к**а**тере экип**а**ж разд**е**лал ...
- 18. п**о**йманную н**а**ми р**ы**бу ...
- 19. и мы заж**а**рили е**ё** на гр**и**ле.
- 20. Было невероятно вкусно!

#### Урок Восемь

- 1. Мы прекрасно провели время ...
- 2. в комп**а**нии т**ё**ти **А**ни, д**я**ди Вол**о**ди и Вад**и**ма.
- 3. Было замечательно посмотреть ...
- 4. Калининградскую область, увидеть старый город, ...
- 5. узнать его историю. А главное, ...
- 6. пообщ**а**ться с родн**ы**ми! Они пообещ**а**ли ...
- 7. при**е**хать в сл**е**дующем год**у** к нам в Нью Йорк.
- 8. З**а**втра мы вылет**а**ем в Москв**у**, ...
- 9. там мы встретим мою бабушку.
- 10. Он**а** нас б**у**дет беспрер**ы**вно корм**и**ть.
- 11. Отдохн**ё**м в дер**е**вне, и набер**ё**м вес.
- 12. Потом мама будет жаловаться, ...
- 13. что все штаны стали маленькими.
- 14. А я с удов**о**льствием поед**а**ю б**а**бушкины пирожк**и**.
- 15. Он**а** их д**е**лает п**ы**шными, ...

- 16. с карт**о**шкой, с кап**у**стой, а ещ**ё** с гриб**а**ми.
- 17. Я прогл**а**тываю их од**и**н за друг**и**м.
- 18. В деревне еда кажется такой вкусной!
- 19. Это потом**у**, что прод**у**кты св**е**жие ...
- 20. и потом**у,** что **э**то б**а**бушка так волш**е**бно гот**о**вит.

#### Урок Девять

- 1. Родственники со стороны моего папы ...
- 2. живут в Краснодаре. Это город на юге России.
- 3. Он нах**о**дится в пят**и** час**а**х езд**ы** от, ...
- 4. известного теперь всем города, Сочи.
- 5. Именно там проходила зимняя Олимпиада ...
- 6. в две тысячи четырнадцатом году.
- 7. В Краснодаре мягкий, тёплый климат, ...
- 8. дл**и**нное л**е**то и кор**о**ткая зима.
- 9. Город славится вечнозелёными парками и скверами.
- 10. Мо**я** дво**ю**родная сестр**а**, ...
- 11. в этом месяце выходит замуж.
- 12. Наша семья была приглашена на свадьбу.
- 13. Поэтому мы сейчас в Краснодаре.
- 14. Нас снова **о**чень хорош**о** встреч**а**ют, ...
- 15. несмотря на свадебную суету.
- 16. Таня говорит, они ничего не успевают!

- 17. В последний момент что-то случилось с фотографом, ...
- 18. и н**у**жно ср**о**чно найт**и** ем**у** зам**е**ну.
- 19. Мама невесты, тётя Даша, очень переживает.
- 20. Она говорит, свадьба большое счастье, и большой стресс.

#### Урок Десять

- 1. Я была не уверена, чего ожидать в день свадьбы.
- 2. Я никогд**а** не был**а** на св**а**дьбе в Росс**и**и.
- 3. Ок**а**зывается, отмеч**а**ют здесь весь день и всю ночь.
- 4. Часто продолжают отмечать и на следующий день.
- 5. Всё начал**о**сь **у**тром с в**ы**купа нев**е**сты.
- 6. Обычно жених приезжает со своими друзьями ...
- 7. за нев**е**стой к ней дом**о**й, где он**а** ...
- одевается и готовится к торжественному дню.
- 9. Младшие сёстры, братья, племянники ...
- и другие родственники, детского возраста, ...
- 11. а т**а**кже ч**а**сто подр**у**жки нев**е**сты ...
- 12. поджидают жениха у входа ...
- 13. и не пропускают его к ней.

- 14. За каждые несколько шагов, он должен ...
- 15. подсласт**и**ть дет**е**й л**и**бо конф**е**тами, л**и**бо м**е**лочью, ...
- 16. а подр**у**жек цвет**а**ми **и**ли шамп**а**нским.
- 17. Так пр**о**сто нев**е**сту он**и** не отда**ю**т ...
- 18. а заставл**я**ют жених**а** потруд**и**ться, ...
- 19. и показ**а**ть, что ем**у** ничег**о** не ж**а**лко отд**а**ть р**а**ди люб**и**мой.
- Я, конечно же, поучаствовала в этой традиции!

#### Урок Одиннадцать

- 1. Регистрация брака в России проходит ...
- 2. в центральном городском учреждении.
- 3. **Э**то б**ы**страя форм**а**льная церем**о**ния.
- 4. Некоторые пары выбирают ...
- 5. ещ**ё** и обвенч**а**ться в ц**е**ркви.
- 6. Многие гости принесли Тане цветы.
- 7. После регистрации все бросились поздравлять ...
- 8. жених**а** и нев**е**сту, и завал**и**ли их цвет**а**ми!
- 9. Сейч**а**с мы дл**и**нным св**а**дебным корт**е**жем **е**дем ...
- 10. в городск**о**й сквер на ф**о**то с**е**ссию.
- 11. Во глав**е** кол**о**нны лимуз**и**н с жених**о**м и нев**е**стой.
- 12. Он украшен цветами, и на крыше эмблема ...
- 13. со скр**е**щенными обруч**а**льными к**о**льцами.
- 14. За ним тянется вереница машин с гостями.
- 15. Мн**о**гие укр**а**сили сво**и** маш**и**ны шар**а**ми.

- 16. Мы т**о**же завяз**а**ли л**е**нточки и шар**ы** на ...
- 17. боков**ы**е зеркал**а** и р**у**чки двер**е**й.
- 18. Все находятся в праздничном настроении, ...
- 19. громко сигналят, чтобы оповестить окружающих ...
- 20. о радостном событии.

#### Урок Двенадцать

- Наконец -то все собрались в банкетном зале.
- На столах изобилие еды, закуски и спиртное.
- 3. Было выбрано красивое место с верандой.
- 4. Гости могут выйти подышать свежим воздухом и ...
- 5. полюбоваться видом на пруд.
- 6. В Росс**и**и л**ю**бят наним**а**ть профессион**а**ла ...
- 7. развлек**а**ть гост**е**й тамад**у**.
- 8. Он, как вед**у**щий развлек**а**тельной прогр**а**ммы, —
- предложил первый тост родителям невесты.
- 10. П**о**сле **э**того ещ**ё** б**ы**ло **о**чень мн**о**го т**о**стов!
- 11. А ещ**ё** мы мн**о**го раз выкр**и**кивали, «Г**о**рько!»
- 12. При **э**том жен**и**х и нев**е**ста должн**ы** поцелов**а**ться, ...

- 13. чт**о**бы смен**и**ть «г**о**рько» на сл**а**дкий поцел**у**й.
- 14. Тамада проводил забавные игры с гостями, ...
- 15. были песни и танцы, мы от души веселились.
- 16. Я не п**о**мню, когд**а** я ст**о**лько ...
- 17. **е**ла и танцев**а**ла в сво**е**й ж**и**зни!
- 18. Потом был огромный торт и продолжение веселья.
- 19. Мн**о**го тр**о**гательных мом**е**нтов.
- 20. Т**ё**тя Д**а**ша сч**а**стлива, что пр**а**здник уд**а**лся.

#### Урок Тринадцать

- 1. Я до сих пор оправляюсь ...
- 2. п**о**сле вес**ё**лой св**а**дьбы.
- 3. Признаться, это был очень длинный день.
- 4. **Э**тим л**е**том мне исполн**я**ется дв**а**дцать од**и**н год!
- 5. В подарок я попросила родителей исполнить ...
- 6. мо**ё** жел**а**ние соверш**и**ть по**е**здку на Камч**а**тку.
- 7. Он**и** немн**о**го удив**и**лись, ...
- 8. но с р**а**достью соглас**и**лись.
- 9. Он**и** сами **о**чень л**ю**бят путеш**е**ствовать.
- 10. Камч**а**тка это полу**о**стров ...
- 11. на Д**а**льнем Вост**о**ке Росс**и**и.
- 12. Он нах**о**дится немн**о**го с**е**вернее Яп**о**нии.
- 13. Камч**а**тка реги**о**н уник**а**льных прир**о**дных п**а**рков, ...
- 14. заповедников, а также вулканов.
- 15. Их насч**и**тывается здесь б**о**льше трёхс**о**т, ...

- 16. из них от двадцати восьми до тридцати шести ...
- 17. считаются активными.
- 18. В пр**о**шлом год**у** я увлекл**а**сь фотогр**а**фией.
- 19. Я в **э**ту по**е**здку **е**ду с н**о**вым фотоаппар**а**том.
- 20. Камч**а**тка иде**а**льное м**е**сто для ф**о**тоох**о**ты.

#### Урок Четырнадцать

- 1. Перел**ё**т из Краснод**а**ра на Камч**а**тку ...
- 2. был мучительно долгим.
- 3. Разница во времени девять часов.
- 4. **У**тренний в**о**здух был ...
- 5. так**о**й св**е**жий и прохл**а**дный, ...
- 6. сразу захотелось хорошо перекусить, ...
- 7. и взобр**а**ться на как**у**ю-ниб**у**дь верш**и**ну.
- 8. Мы уже знали, что Камчатский регион ...
- 9. богат достопримечательностями ...
- 10. и вс**ё** посмотр**е**ть мы не усп**е**ем.
- 11. На сем**е**йном сов**е**те б**ы**ло решен**о** ...
- 12. обяз**а**тельно взойт**и** на вулк**а**ны, ...
- 13. и сплавиться по реке и увидеть медведей, ...
- 14. которые в этом регионе хозяева.
- 15. Он**и** перебир**а**ются бл**и**же к оз**ё**рам ...
- 16. во время нереста лосося.
- 17. **И**менно тогд**а** м**о**жно на дост**а**точно бл**и**зком рассто**я**нии ...
- 18. рассмотр**е**ть медв**е**дей и сд**е**лать ...
- 19. несколько кадров кр**у**пным планом.
- В отличии от меня, мама не в восторге от этой идеи.

#### Урок Пятнадцать

- Сегодня мы выдвигаемся на нашу первую экскурсию.
- 2. **Э**то вертол**ё**тная экск**у**рсия в дол**и**ну Г**е**йзеров.
- 3. **Э**та мо**я** первая поездка на вертолёте.
- 4. У мен**я** захв**а**тывает дух!
- 5. Вся **э**та д**и**кая красот**а** Камч**а**тки.
- 6. Мы соверш**а**ем обл**ё**т ...
- 7. двух акт**и**вных вулк**а**нов, ...
- 8. из кот**о**рых вздым**а**ется дым**о**к.
- 9. Ч**у**вствуется р**е**зкий з**а**пах с**е**ры.
- 10. Скоро посадка, а дальше пешеходная экскурсия по долине.
- Мама рада почувствовать опять землю под ногами.
- 12. Ей в пол**ё**те б**ы**ло не по себ**е**.
- После нескольких часов подъёмов и спусков, ...
- 14. мы б**ы**ли вознагражден**ы** ...

- 15. купанием в горячих источниках.
- 16. Здесь в дол**и**не больш**о**е кол**и**чество минер**а**льных ист**о**чников.
- 17. Он**и** обладают выс**о**кими концентрациями ...
- 18. биолог**и**чески акт**и**вных компон**е**нтов, ...
- 19. и им**е**ют разл**и**чные цел**е**бные св**о**йства.
- 20. Сидеть в горячей воде на природе очень расслабляет.

### Урок Шестнадцать

- 1. Камч**а**тка не переста**ё**т нас удивл**я**ть.
- 2. Сег**о**дня нам предсто**и**т дегуст**а**ция икр**ы** ...
- 3. пят**и** в**и**дов Тихооке**а**нских лос**о**сей.
- 4. Мы узн**а**ли, что яп**о**нская и кор**е**йская к**у**хни ...
- 5. **о**чень попул**я**рны сред**и** ж**и**телей полу**о**строва.
- 6. К**у**хня коренн**ы**х нар**о**дов, ...
- 7. весьм**а** необ**ы**чна.
- 8. Из-за перем**е**нчивой пог**о**ды ...
- 9. и географ**и**ческого располож**е**ния реги**о**на, ...
- эти народы вынуждены были с древних времён ...
- 11. прибег**а**ть к с**а**мым нестанд**а**ртным ингреди**е**нтам ...
- 12. и сп**о**собам приготовл**е**ния п**и**щи.
- 13. Нам не всё удал**о**сь попр**о**бовать, ...
- 14. а что-то мы не решились пробовать.

- 15. Например, кровяной суп, медвежье сало ...
- 16. **и**ли бл**ю**до из требух**и** ол**е**ня.
- 17. Кон**е**чно**, о**чень попул**я**рна р**ы**ба.
- 18. Аром**а**т и аппет**и**тный вид **ю**колы, ...
- 19. **э**то в**я**леный лос**о**сь, не даст вам пройт**и** м**и**мо, ...
- 20. **е**сли вы реш**и**ли заскоч**и**ть на р**ы**бный р**ы**нок.

### Урок Семнадцать

- 1. Сег**о**дня четв**ё**ртый день н**а**шего пребыв**а**ния на Камч**а**тке.
- 2. Вчер**а** мы весь день провел**и** на л**о**дке ...
- 3. сплавл**я**ясь по рек**е**, ночев**а**ли в пал**а**тке.
- 4. Я просн**у**лась, и понял**а**, ...
- 5. что у мен**я** выс**о**кая температ**у**ра.
- 6. У мен**я** бол**и**т г**о**рло и с**и**льная головн**а**я боль.
- 7. Как же я некстати заболела!
- 8. Мама теперь страшно переживает.
- 9. Нав**е**рное, я прост**ы**ла, так как пром**о**кла вчер**а**.
- 10. Мен**я** саж**а**ют у костр**а**, ...
- 11. налив**а**ют гор**я**чей р**ы**бной похл**ё**бки.
- 12. Наш гид собр**а**л м**е**стные тр**а**вы и ...
- 13. заварил мне с ними чай.
- 14. Есть у нег**о** и м**е**стный мёд.
- 15. Я тут же засып**а**ю на с**о**лнышке ...

- 16. под лесн**у**ю тишин**у**, жужж**а**ние насек**о**мых, ...
- 17. чир**и**канье птиц, р**о**кот рек**и**.
- 18. Сн**я**тся мне сл**а**дкие сны, я пар**ю** в **во**здухе, ...
- 19. пролет**а**я над Калинингр**а**дом, зат**е**м Краснод**а**ром.
- 20. Открываю глаза, вижу небо и звёзды.

### Урок Восемнадцать

- 1. Каникулы подходят к концу.
- 2. Сегодня мы проведём день в городе, ...
- 3. Петропавловск-Камчатский столица округа.
- 4. **Э**тот день был отвед**ё**н для сб**о**ров, ...
- 5. пок**у**пки сувен**и**ров и **о**тдыха п**е**ред перел**ё**том.
- 6. Из сувен**и**ров к**у**пим немн**о**го кр**а**сной икр**ы**.
- 7. Уехать с Камчатки и не взять икры, это будет потеря.
- 8. Папа очень хочет взять копчёной рыбы.
- 9. Но до Ам**е**рики мы т**о**чно е**ё** не довез**ё**м.
- 10. Обратно мы летим через Москву ...
- 11. и остан**о**вимся у моей бабшки переночев**а**ть.
- 12. А я хот**е**ла бы куп**и**ть себ**е** на п**а**мять ...
- 13. под**е**лки из дерева от местных умельцев.
- 14. Мама напомнила мне, что наша соседка ...

- 15. просила привезти ей что-нибудь вкусное.
- 16. Может быть шоколадных конфет?
- 17. Я сама бы не отказалась от шоколада!
- 18. Б**а**бушка пообещ**а**ла мне на день рожд**е**ния ...
- 19. исп**е**чь мой люб**и**мый шокол**а**дный торт ...
- 20. с ягодами по её секретному рецепту.

### Урок Девятнадцать

- 1. Мы в России уже почти месяц.
- 2. Я д**у**мала, я б**у**ду скуч**а**ть по друзь**я**м, ...
- 3. по д**о**му и по сво**и**м прив**ы**чкам.
- 4. Но наша по**е**здка оказ**а**лась так**о**й нас**ы**щенной ...
- 5. что мне н**е**когда б**ы**ло ...
- 6. зад**у**маться **и** загруст**и**ть.
- 7. Всё **э**то вр**е**мя я разгов**а**риваю на р**у**сском.
- 8. Я **о**чень благод**а**рна сво**и**м род**и**телям ...
- 9. за то, что он**и** терпел**и**во уч**и**ли мен**я** язык**у**.
- 10. Род**и**вшись в Ам**е**рике и наход**я**сь в сред**е**, ...
- 11. где все говор**я**т на англ**и**йском, ...
- 12. и особенно в школе, очень сложно ...
- 13. мотив**и**ровать реб**ё**нка говор**и**ть на друг**о**м язык**е**.
- 14. Но он**и** всегд**а** разгов**а**ривали со мной ...
- 15. т**о**лько на р**у**сском.

- 16. Иногд**а** заставл**я**ли мен**я** чит**а**ть р**у**сские кн**и**ги.
- 17. Только сейчас, я по-настоящему ценю это.
- 18. Без знания языка, я не смогла бы ...
- 19. так просто общаться со своей бабушкой, ...
- 20. и узнать столько всего о России.

### Урок Двадцать

- 1. Мы наконец-то дома и день за днём ...
- 2. привыкаем к суете Нью Йорка.
- 3. Стоит просто невыносимая духота, ...
- 4. воздух кажется таким тяжёлым.
- 5. Мой фотоаппар**а**т ждёт к**о**гда же я након**е**ц ...
- 6. перемещ**у** фотогр**а**фии на компь**ю**тер.
- 7. Их получилось свыше трёх тысяч!
- 8. Сег**о**дня в**е**чером я план**и**рую зан**я**ться ...
- 9. их сортир**о**вкой и в**ы**брать с**а**мые л**у**чшие для альб**о**ма.
- 10. Б**у**дет **о**чень зд**о**рово напеч**а**тать фотогр**а**фии ...
- 11. на кот**о**рых запечатлен**ы** счастл**и**вые мом**е**нты.
- 12. А также невероятные места, ...
- 13. в кот**о**рых мы побыв**а**ли.
- 14. Я ув**е**рена, что моя м**а**ма ...
- будет просматривать его, когда ей грустно, ...

- 16. и это будет поднимать ей настроение.
- 17. Я над**е**юсь, у мо**и**х б**у**дущих дет**е**й т**о**же ...
- 18. б**у**дет возм**о**жность путеш**е**ствовать в Росс**и**ю.
- 19. Пусть **э**тот альб**о**м ...
- 20. будет им вдохновением.

#### **Lesson One**

- 1. Finally came the time of school vacation!
- 2. Do you love summer?
- 3. Summer is my favorite time of the year.
- 4. In the summer my family sets out on (a) vacation trip.
- 5. I was born and now live in USA, ...
- 6. and my parents were born and grew up in Russia.
- 7. They moved to New York in the nineties, ...
- 8. at the time of the collapse of the Soviet Union.
- 9. We have relatives and close friends who remained in Russia.
- 10. We try to visit them.
- 11. I spent not (just) one summer ...
- 12. visiting at my grandmother's in a village near Moscow.
- 13. This summer we very much want to call on ...
- 14. Aunt Anya, (my) mom's sister.
- 15. Several years ago she and her husband ...

- 16. changed (their) place of residence.
- 17. Now they live in Kaliningrad.
- 18. I did not know anything at all about this city.
- 19. And I was very intrigued [lit. surprised], ...
- 20. when (I) found Kaliningrad on the map.

#### **Lesson Two**

- 1. Turns out this district, like a small island ...
- 2. is situated separately from the rest ...
- 3. of the territory of the Russian Federation.
- 4. The district is squeezed between Poland and Lithuania.
- 5. And is washed by the Baltic Sea.
- 6. My mom said that Kaliningrad ...
- 7. appearance-wise is different from Russian cities.
- 8. Before World War II it used to be part of Germany.
- 9. Aunt Anya sent us pictures from Kaliningrad.
- 10. There are cathedrals in the Gothic style over there, ...
- 11. and old forts, and sea boardwalks ...
- 12. with colorful little houses and cozy cafes.
- 13. (The) Kaliningrad district in my imagination ...
- 14. looks wonderful!

- 15. We are flying out to Russia in the end of this week.
- 16. We, unfortunately, don't have a direct flight ...
- 17. but (one) with (a) stopover in Warsaw.
- 18. Thank God, we won't wait for too long at the airport.
- 19. Presents and souvenirs for relatives are bought.
- 20. We packed the suitcases up and are ready to go [lit. depart] on our way!

### **Lesson Three**

- 1. Kaliningrad is meeting us in a not very friendly way.
- 2. The weather is gloomy, it's raining.
- 3. Aunt Anya explained that their summer is usually cool.
- 4. In June it's often cloudy ...
- 5. and the temperature is about twenty degrees in Celsius.
- 6. That is seventy degrees in Fahrenheit.
- 7. It's for sure not the tropics here, I thought.
- 8. But, despite that, local residents ...
- 9. love to lie on the beach and swim in the sea.
- 10. They are accustomed to such climate.
- 11. Aunt Anya with joy informed us ...
- 12. that her neighbor works at the Museum of Immanuel Kant.
- 13. And she will take us on an unforgettable tour ...
- 14. around the museum and around the city.

- 15. Immanuel Kant was a famous German philosopher.
- 16. He was born in this city, (back) then it was Königsberg.
- 17. He wrote a lot of books ...
- 18. was a talented professor, ...
- 19. made big contribution to education.
- 20. He has lived his whole life here and was buried here as well.

### **Lesson Four**

- 1. My aunt has a son, of my age.
- 2. We saw each other last time ...
- 3. when (we) were quite little.
- 4. Vadim is studying at technical university of Kaliningrad.
- 5. He promised me to show their university, ...
- 6. and to introduce me to his friends.
- 7. I'm very curious what it's like, ...
- 8. student life in Russia.
- 9. How pleasant (it is) to visit relatives!
- 10. It's time for dinner, (and) everyone is fussing around.
- 11. My mom and Aunt Anya are setting the table.
- 12. In the air is aroma of roasted-with-apples chicken.
- 13. The men are already sitting at the table with forks in their hands.
- 14. They are always ready to have a tasty meal.
- 15. Our moms cook excellently.

- 16. I should learn too.
- 17. After dinner we drink tea with candies, and talk.
- 18. Parents are reminiscing of their childhood, ...
- 19. of common friends, who is where now. They sigh, ...
- 20. then laugh, and I'm observing them with a smile.

### **Lesson Five**

- 1. This weekend according to the forecast ...
- 2. should be excellent weather.
- 3. Uncle Volodia suggested going ...
- 4. to Zelenogradsk for a couple days.
- 5. It's a quiet seaside town ...
- 6. approximately an hour drive from Kaliningrad.
- 7. (It's a) resort city, an ideal place for a relaxing, ...
- 8. family vacation [lit. rest]. It was decided ...
- 9. to rent not a big house not far from the shore.
- 10. And on the way to Zelenogradsk, we made plans ...
- 11. to drive by the national park Curonian Spit.
- 12. It is included in the list of UNESCO World Heritage sites.
- I read that Curonian Spit is called "birds' bridge."
- 14. An ancient route of the birds runs here ...
- 15. migrating (route) from the North to the South.

- 16. In the park one can see sand dunes ...
- 17. and needle-leaved forests.
- 18. It is one of the smallest, ...
- 19. and at the same time one of the most visited ...
- 20. national parks of Russia.

#### **Lesson Six**

- 1. Somebody told us that not far from the park ...
- 2. there is a wonderful, secluded beach.
- The day today is warm, sunny, no cloud in the sky!
- 4. Next stop the beach on the coast of the Baltic Sea.
- 5. We didn't find this place right away, ...
- 6. as if the beach was hiding from visitors.
- 7. We were wandering around for a long time along a narrow village road ...
- 8. and finally drove out to the shore.
- 9. Here Vadim and I are gladly running towards the water ...
- and diving with our head first into the cold water.
- We are pleased, crawling out of the water and see ...
- 12. our parents with funny, alarmed and ...
- 13. somewhat awkward expressions on (their) faces.

- 14. They are calling us toward them with gestures.
- 15. Vadim and I looked at one another (lit. "We looked at each other with Vadim") and hurried ...
- 16. towards them. And only now we understood ...
- 17. the cause of their strange behavior.
- 18. All vacationers at the beach were absolutely naked!
- 19. It turned out to be a nude beach!
- 20. On our way to a different beach we were all laughing in unison.

#### Lesson Seven

- 1. Today is birthday of my dad.
- 2. We prepared a surprise for him!
- 3. He very much loves to fish, ...
- 4. and here, in the Baltic Sea, (they) catch cod fish.
- 5. Turned out, the tour of sea fishing is a very common attraction.
- 6. We reserved a big motor boat with two cabins and ...
- 7. kitchen equipment.
- 8. The crew gave us fishing gear and showed us ...
- 9. how to correctly catch this big, predatory fish.
- 10. It was not easy!
- 11. We with thrill dove into the process ...
- 12. and soon we had the first catch!
- 13. My dad got a three kilo cod.
- And then uncle Volodia also [lit. and] caught a fish.

- 15. We had a perfect captain, who knew all the right places, ...
- 16. so that we, make sure [lit. exactly] don't leave empty handed.
- 17. Right there on the boat the crew prepared ...
- 18. the caught by us fish ...
- 19. and we roasted it on the grill.
- 20. (It) was unbelievably tasty!

### **Lesson Eight**

- 1. We spent time beautifully ...
- 2. in the company of Aunt Ania, Uncle Volodia and Vadim.
- 3. (It) was great to check out / have a look at ...
- 4. Kaliningrad district, to see the old city, ...
- 5. to find out its history. And the main thing ...
- 6. to socialize with relatives! They promised ...
- 7. to come visit us next year in New York.
- 8. Tomorrow we fly out to Moscow, ...
- 9. over there we will visit my grandmother.
- 10. She will feed us non-stop.
- (We) will relax in the village, and will gain weight.
- 12. Then my mom will complain ...
- 13. that all the pants became too small.
- 14. But I with pleasure eat grandma's pirozhki.
- 15. She makes them fluffy ...
- 16. with potatoes, with cabbage, and also with mushrooms.
- 17. I swallow them one after another.
- 18. In the village food seems so tasty!
- 19. This is because the produce is fresh ...
- 20. and because my grandma so magically cooks.

### **Lesson Nine**

- 1. Relatives from my dad's side ...
- 2. live in Krasnodar. It's a city in the south of Russia.
- 3. It is situated five hours driving from ...
- 4. the famous city to everyone now, Sochi.
- 5. Exactly there took place the winter Olympics ...
- 6. in two thousand fourteenth year.
- 7. In Krasnodar is mild, warm climate, ...
- 8. long summer and short winter.
- 9. The city is famous with wonderful, evergreen parks and public gardens.
- 10. My (female) cousin, ...
- 11. this month is getting married.
- 12. Our family was invited for the wedding.
- 13. For that reason we are now in Krasnodar.
- 14. We once again are very well hosted, ...
- 15. despite wedding fuss.

- 16. Tania says, they are not managing anything in time!
- 17. At the last moment something happened to the photographer, ...
- 18. and it was necessary to urgently find him a replacement.
- 19. The mother of the bride, Aunt Dasha, is worrying a lot.
- 20. She says, a wedding is big happiness and big stress.

#### **Lesson Ten**

- 1. I was not sure what to expect on the day of the wedding.
- 2. I've never been to a wedding in Russia.
- Turns out (they) celebrate (it) here all day and all night.
- 4. Often continuing to celebrate the next day too.
- 5. Everything started in the morning with ransom of the bride.
- 6. Usually the groom arrives with his friends ...
- 7. for his bride to her house, where she is ...
- 8. dressing and preparing for celebratory day.
- 9. Young sisters, brothers, nephews ...
- 10. and other relatives of kids age, ...
- 11. and also often girlfriends of the bride ...
- 12. are waiting for the groom outside at the entrance ...
- 13. and don't let him in to her.
- 14. For every few steps, he has to ...
- 15. sweeten the kids with either candies or change ...

- 16. and girlfriends with flowers or champagne.
- 17. They don't simply give away the bride ...
- 18. but they make the groom to work hard ...
- 19. and show that there's nothing he won't give away for his beloved.
- 20. I, of course, took a part in this tradition!

### **Lesson Eleven**

- 1. Registration of marriage in Russia happens ...
- 2. at a central city institution.
- 3. It's a quick formal ceremony.
- 4. Some couples choose ...
- 5. also to wed at a church.
- 6. Many guests brought Tania flowers.
- 7. After the registration everyone rushed to congratulate ...
- 8. the groom and the bride, and covered them with flowers!
- Now we are driving in a long wedding procession ...
- 10. to a city garden for a photo session.
- 11. At the head of the column is the limousine with the bride and the groom.
- 12. It is decorated with flowers, and on the roof is the emblem ...
- 13. of crossed wedding bands.
- After it stretches a line of cars with the guests.

- 15. Many (guests) decorated their cars with balloons.
- 16. We also tied ribbons and balloons to ...
- 17. side mirrors and door handles.
- 18. Everyone is in a festive mood, ...
- 19. loudly honking to inform people around ...
- 20. about the joyful event.

### **Lesson Twelve**

- 1. Finally everyone gathered in a banquet hall.
- 2. On the table is an abundance of food, appetizers and spirits.
- 3. A very beautiful place with a terrace was chosen.
- 4. Guests can go outside to breathe fresh air and ...
- 5. to admire the view of the pond.
- 6. In Russia (they) love to hire professionals ...
- 7. to entertain guests an MC.
- 8. He, as a lead of entertaining program, —
- 9. proposed that the parents of the bride say the first toast.
- 10. After that there were very many more toasts!
- 11. And also we many times exclaimed, «Bitter!»
- 12. At that point the groom and the bride have to kiss one another, ...
- 13. in order to change "bitter" to a sweet kiss.
- 14. The MC conducted funny games with the guests,...

- 15. there were songs and dances, we were wholeheartedly having fun.
- 16. I don't remember when I so much ...
- 17. ate and danced in my life!
- 18. Then there was an enormous cake and continuation of the fun.
- 19. There were many touching moments.
- 20. Aunt Dasha is happy that the celebration turned out great.

### **Lesson Thirteen**

- 1. I'm still recovering ...
- 2. after the fun wedding.
- 3. To say the truth, it was a very long day.
- 4. This summer I'm turning twenty-one!
- 5. For a present I asked my parents to fulfill ...
- 6. my wish to take a trip to Kamchatka.
- 7. They were a bit surprised, ...
- 8. but gladly agreed.
- 9. They themselves very much love to travel.
- 10. Kamchatka is a peninsula ...
- 11. in Far East of Russia.
- 12. It is located a little north of Japan.
- 13. Kamchatka is a region of unique nature parks, ...
- 14. reserves and also volcanoes.
- 15. More than three hundred of them are counted here, ...
- 16. from twenty-eight to thirty-six of those ...
- 17. are considered active.
- 18. Last year I got fond of photography.
- 19. I am into this trip going with a new camera.
- Kamchatka is an ideal place for picture hunting.

### **Lesson Fourteen**

- 1. The flight from Krasnodar to Kamchatka ...
- 2. was excruciatingly long.
- 3. The difference in time is nine hours.
- 4. The morning air was ...
- 5. so fresh and crisp, ...
- 6. (that) right away we wanted to have a good bite to eat, ...
- 7. and to climb up some peak.
- 8. We already knew that the Kamchatka region ...
- 9. is rich in attractions ...
- 10. and we won't manage to see everything.
- 11. At a family meeting it was decided ...
- 12. by all means to climb upon the volcanoes, ...
- 13. and go river rafting and to see the bears, ...
- 14. who in this region are the owners.
- 15. They move closer to lakes ...
- 16. during the spawning season of salmon.
- 17. That's exactly when it's possible at a near enough distance ...
- 18. to study bears and take ...
- 19. a few close-up shots.
- 20. Opposite to me, my mom is not thrilled about this idea.

### **Lesson Fifteen**

- 1. Today we are heading out for our first excursion.
- 2. It is a helicopter excursion to the Valley of Geysers.
- 3. It's my first ride (lit. trip) on a helicopter.
- 4. It's breathtaking! (lit. "At me (it) captures the air!")
- 5. All this wild beauty of Kamchatka.
- 6. We are doing a flight around ...
- 7. two active volcanoes, ...
- 8. out of which smoke is emerging.
- 9. (We) can feel the sharp smell of sulfur.
- 10. Soon is the landing, and then an excursion on foot in the valley.
- 11. (My) mom is glad to feel again ground under her feet.
- 12. She felt during the flight out of sorts.
- 13. After few hours of ascent and descent, ...
- 14. we were rewarded ...

- 15. with a swim in hot springs.
- 16. Here in the valley is a big amount of mineral springs.
- 17. They possess high concentrations of ...
- 18. biologically active components, ...
- 19. and have various healing properties.
- 20. To sit in hot water out in the nature is very relaxing.

#### Lesson Sixteen

- 1. Kamchatka does not cease to surprise us.
- 2. Today we are to taste caviar ...
- 3. from five kinds of Pacific Ocean salmon.
- 4. We learned that Japanese and Korean cuisines ...
- 5. are very popular among locals of the peninsula.
- 6. The cuisine of the native people, ...
- 7. is quite unusual.
- 8. Because of the ever-changing weather ...
- 9. and geographic location of the region, ...
- 10. these native tribes were forced from ancient times ...
- 11. to use the most original ingredients ...
- 12. and ways of preparing food.
- 13. We didn't manage to try everything, ...
- 14. and some things we decided not to try.
- 15. For example, blood soup, bear fat ...
- 16. or a dish made out of the intestines of a deer.
- 17. Of course, the very popular [dish] is fish.
- 18. The aroma and appetizing look of yukola, ...
- 19. that is cured salmon, won't let you pass by, ...
- 20. if you decided to drop by a fish market.

#### **Lesson Seventeen**

- 1. Today is the fourth day of our stay in Kamchatka.
- 2. Yesterday we spent all day on a boat ...
- 3. rafting down the river, spent the night in tents.
- 4. I woke up and realized, ...
- 5. that I have a high temperature.
- 6. I have a sore throat and a painful [lit. strong] headache.
- 7. What an inconvenient time to get sick!
- 8. (My) mom now is awfully worried.
- 9. Probably I caught a cold because (I) got soaked yesterday.
- 10. I am being placed near the fire,
- 11. I'm being poured hot fish soup.
- 12. Our guide gathered local herbs and ...
- 13. steeped tea for me with them.
- 14. He also has local honey.
- 15. I'm right away falling asleep in the sun ...

- 16. under the forest silence, the buzzing of the insects, ...
- 17. the chirping of the birds, the rumble of the river.
- 18. I'm dreaming sweet dreams, I'm gliding in the air, ...
- 19. flying above Kaliningrad, then Krasnodar.
- 20. When I open [lit. opening] my eyes, I see the sky and the stars.

### **Lesson Eighteen**

- 1. Vacation is coming to an end.
- 2. Today we will spend a day in the city, ...
- Petropavlovsk Kamchatsky's the capital of the area.
- 4. This day was set aside for packing up, ...
- 5. buying souvenirs and for the rest before the flight.
- 6. For souvenirs (we) will buy a bit of red caviar.
- 7. To leave Kamchatka and not take any caviar, that will be a loss.
- 8. (My) dad very much wants to take smoked fish.
- 9. But we certainly won't get it all the way to America.
- 10. On the way back we are flying through Moscow ...
- 11. and will stop over at my grandma's to spend the night.
- And I would like to buy for myself for good memory ...
- 13. woodcrafts by local craftsmen.

- 14. (My) mom reminded me that our (female) neighbor ...
- 15. asked to bring her something delicious.
- 16. Maybe chocolate candies?
- 17. I myself wouldn't turn down chocolate!
- 18. (My) grandmother promised me for (my) birthday ...
- 19. to bake my favorite chocolate cake ...
- 20. with berries using her secret recipe.

### Lesson Nineteen

- 1. We've been in Russia already almost a month.
- 2. I thought I'd be missing (my) friends, ...
- 3. home and my habits.
- 4. But our trip turned out to be so intense ...
- 5. that I had no time ...
- 6. to ponder or to grow sad.
- 7. All this time I'm having conversations in Russian.
- 8. I'm very grateful to my parents ...
- 9. for that they patiently have been teaching me the language.
- 10. Having been born in America and located in the environment, ...
- 11. where everyone speaks English ...
- 12. and especially in school, it is very difficult ...
- 13. to motivate a child to speak a different language.
- 14. But they always talked with me ...
- 15. only in Russian.

- 16. Sometimes (they) made me read Russian books.
- 17. Only now, I truly value that.
- 18. Without knowledge of the language I would not be able ...
- 19. so simply to communicate with my grandma, ...
- 20. and to learn so much about Russia.

### **Lesson Twenty**

- 1. We are finally home and day by day ...
- getting used to the hustle and bustle of New York.
- 3. There's simply unbearable stuffiness outside, ...
- 4. the air seems so heavy.
- 5. My camera is waiting when I finally ...
- 6. move pictures to the computer.
- 7. They came to three thousand!
- 8. This evening I'm planning to get occupied ...
- 9. with sorting them out and choosing the best ones for the album.
- 10. It will be very cool to print pictures ...
- 11. on which are depicted happy moments.
- 12. And also incredible places, ...
- 13. which we visited.
- 14. I'm sure that my mom ...
- 15. will be looking through it when she's sad, ...
- 16. and it will be raising her mood.
- 17. I hope that my future kids also ...
- 18. will have the opportunity to travel to Russia.
- 19. Let this album ...
- 20. be their inspiration.

For more information, call 1–800–831–5497 or visit us at <u>Pimsleur.com</u>